
Northern Inyo Hospital

May 17 2017  Regular Meeting
May 17 2017 Regular Meeting - May 17 2017 Regular Meeting

Agenda, May 17 2017 Regular Meeting

Agenda, 5-17-17 Regular Meeting

Old Business, Proposed Budget Assumptions

Proposed Budget Assumptions

Nursing Department Policies and Procedures

Nursing Department Policies and Procedures

Hospital wide Policy and Procedure Annual Approvals (Attachment A)

Attachment A, Policy and Procedure Annual Approvals

RHC State Survey

RHC State Survey Results

Proposal for vendor change as Benefits Manager

Proposal for Vendor Change as Benefits Manager

NIHD Inpatient Charges Comparison

NIHD Inpatient Charges Comparison

Consent Agenda

Minutes, April 19 2017 Regular Meeting
District Board Minutes, May 5 2017 Special Meeting
2013 CMS Validation Surgey Monitoring, May 2017
Hospital wide Pillars of Excellence
District Board Minutes, March 1 2017  Special Meeting
Financial and Statistical Reports for March, 2017

Compliance Officer Report

Compliance Officer Report

Chief of Staff Report

Chief of Staff Report

..............................................................................2

.................................................................................5

.........................................................7

.......................................26

........................................................................................34

................................................35

.......................................................................50

..................................................................51
.............................................57

...............................................58
..........................................................................63

.........................................65
..................................................67

.......................................................................................75

..................................................................................................91

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

1

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

May 17, 2017 at 5:30 p.m. 
In the Northern Inyo Hospital Board Room at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA 

 
 
 
  

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of three 

minutes each.). 

3. Old Business  

  A.  Proposed Budget Assumptions Update (information item). 

4.   New Business 

  A.  Approval of Nursing Department Policies and Procedures (action items): 

• Outpatient Infusion Charge Descriptions 

• Charge Sheet and Charge Description in the PACU 

• Dress Code in the OP PACU 

              B.  Hospital Wide Policy and Procedure annual approvals, Attachment A to  

                    Agenda (action item). 

              C.  Joint Commission Lab Survey results (information item). 

              D.  State Survey, NIHD Rural Health Clinic (information item). 

              E.  EHR Next Steps (information item). 

              F.  Proposal for vendor change as Benefits Manager (information item). 

              G.  Northern Inyo Healthcare District inpatient charges comparison to State of California and   

                   competitors, 2010 to 2015 (information item). 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                       Consent Agenda (action items) 
5. Approval of minutes of the March 1, 2017 special meeting 

6. Approval of minutes of the April 19, 2017 regular meeting 

7. Approval of minutes  of the May 5, 2017 special meeting 

8. 2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring, May 2017 

2



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, May 17, 2017 
 
 

5/12/2017, 10:10 AM 

9. Financial and Statistical Reports for the period ending March 31, 2017 

10. Hospital Wide Pillars of Excellence quarterly report, July 1 2016 to June 30 2017 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

11. Patient Experience Committee report (information item). 

12. Workforce Experience Committee report (information item). 

13. Compliance Officer Report (information item). 

14. Compliance Policy and Procedure update, False Claims Act Employee Training and Prevention 

Policy (action item). 

15. Chief of Staff Report; Joy Engblade, MD: 

A.  Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Order Set approvals (action items): 

• Venous Blood Collection 

• Insulin Continuous Subcutaneous Infusion Self Management of the Patient in the Acute 

Setting 

• Consent Form: Videotaping, Voice Recording, and Photography in the Perinatal Unit 

            B.   Perinatal Critical Indicators 2017 (action item) 

            C.  Medical Staff Appointment/Privileges (action item) 

• Temporary Staff:  John Franklin, MD (internal medicine – temporary assignment until 

12/31/17) 

            D.  Additional Privileges (action item) 

• Richard Meredick, MD (orthopedic surgery) – additional surgical privileges granted: 

- Biopsy 

- Excision Biopsy Tumors (including ganglion etc.) 

- Pathological Fracture Fixation 

    16. Reports from Board members (information items). 

    17. Adjournment to closed session to/for: 

           A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the responsible department  

                head and the Medical Staff Executive Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety  

                Code, and Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

            B.  Confer with Legal Counsel regarding pending and threatened litigation, existing litigation and  

                  significant exposure to litigation, 4 matters pending (pursuant to Government Code Section  

                  54956.9). 

            C.  Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (estimated public session date for  

3



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, May 17, 2017 
 
 

5/12/2017, 10:10 AM 

                  discussion yet to be determined) (Health and Safety Code Section 32106). 

      18.  Return to open session and report of any action taken in closed session.  

      19.  Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

4



We Need Congress to Pass a New Budget 

• The on-going process of passing continuing resolutions is 
not addressing the issue that sequestration guarantees that 
NIH loses money each year serving Medicare patients in 
every patient care setting 

• There is at least one bill before Congress that would be 
incorporated into the Fiscal 2018 budget which would 
eliminate sequestration for Critical Access Hospitals, Rural 
Health Clinics and Community Health Centers 

• The sequestration reductions are averaging $450,000 per 
year for NIH and by the end of Fiscal 2017 will total nearly 
$1,950,000 over the last five fiscal years since they started 
in late Fiscal 2013. 

• Part of the challenge for Northern Inyo Health Care District 
to have a positive margin is sequestration 

5



Medicare Sequestration Reductions 

$-
$50,000

$100,000
$150,000
$200,000
$250,000
$300,000
$350,000
$400,000
$450,000
$500,000
$550,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Inpatient Outpatient Fee Schedule Outpatient Hospital
Vaccines Professional Fees Rural Health Clinic
Swing Bed 6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



Click to edit master title style 

BOARD PRESENTATION 
 
CCAHN Group Purchasing Program and  New 
Consultant/Broker for 2018 Benefit Program 

35



2 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Purpose of Meeting 

We are recommending that Northern Inyo Hospital 
move to a new Consultant and TPA, and join the 
Group Purchasing Program which is sponsored by 
the California Critical Access Hospital Network 
(CCAHN).  

36



3 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Background 
• CCAHN has been working for the past 18 months to 

develop a benefits group purchasing program with their 
consultant, Keenan HealthCare. 

• Keenan is building a JPA for District Hospitals and 
qualifying rural, nonprofit Hospitals.  

• Keenan has discussed the JPA with several hospitals for 
membership: Fairchild, Healdsburg, Kern Valley, Mayers 
Memorial, Mee Memorial, Modoc, Plumas, Ridgecrest, 
So. Humboldt and Tahoe Forest.  

• All benefits (Medical, Dental, Vision, Life and Disability) 
will be included. 

• The effective date will be January 2018. 

37



4 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Why Should NIH Join the CCAHN Sponsored  
Program? 
Joining other hospitals to purchase benefits will bring: 
• Reduced medical plan expenses.  We expect lower cost for  

Stop Loss, TPA fees and Network access fees.  
• Expected savings for Rx is at least 10 – 12% of retail claims. 
• Expected savings for Dental, Vision, Life and Disability is     

5 – 10% or more.  
• A TPA experienced in custom design administration 
• Reporting to assist with decisions based on member 

utilization, in addition to more benchmarking data. 
• Potential for risk sharing which will leave us less vulnerable 

to large claims. 

38



5 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

JPA Commitment 
• No cost to join the JPA 

• No capital requirement 

• Minimum time commitment – all meetings will be held by 
WebEx 

• Two year commitment to the JPA – NIH can leave after 
two years 

• Supports CCAHN and other critical access/rural 
hospitals 

 

 

39



6 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Why Change to Keenan HealthCare for 
Consulting and TPA Services?  
• Industry Focused - KHC provides consulting/brokerage 

services exclusively to Hospitals and Medical Groups. KHC 
has over 100 California health care clients and the TPA has 
over 75 hospital clients.  

• Experience - Keenan has developed many group purchasing 
programs and has created dozens of JPAs.  

• Expertise - They were chosen as the managing Consultant 
for the Hospital Association of Southern California (HASC) 
and as the preferred Consultant for CCAHN members. 

40



7 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

How Keenan will Help Us Achieve Our 
Benefit Program Objectives 
• Cost Reduction – KHC has extensive experience in 

providing options and programs proven to lower cost  

• Domestic Utilization Optimization – Will design programs 
to channel business back to NIH with a TPA that has 
vast experience in administering custom plan designs 

• Competitive Plans – KHC has more California hospital 
benchmark data than any California consulting firm  

• Compliance – In-house Benefit and ACA attorneys to 
assure NIH is in compliance with all State and Federal 
regulations 

 
41



8 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

How Keenan will Help Us Achieve Our  
Benefit Program Objectives 
• Population Health Management – KHC has PHM 

Division that has built and managed many successful 
programs to improve health outcomes for employees 

• Human Resource Support and Ease of Administration – 
Dedicated Account Management team with corporate 
support for Underwriting, Communications, Legal 
counsel, and Voluntary Plans.  

42



9 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Keenan’s Group Purchasing Programs  
Below is an example of one of Keenan’s group 
purchasing programs, the Keenan Pharmacy Purchasing 
Coalition, managed by Express Scripts.  

• The Rx coalition has over 500,000 members including 
many hospital systems (Dignity, Prime) and 
independent facilities (Eisenhower, Kern Valley, 
Ridgecrest)  

• Expected savings of 10 – 15% for retail claims.  2016 
average claim savings for hospitals was 15.4%.  

• All hospitals have same Rx pricing regardless of size   

• Strong clinical management programs to stay ahead of 
market  

 
43



10 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Adventist Health 

Antelope Valley Hospital 

Avanti Hospitals, LLC 

Beverly Hospital 

California Rehab Institute 
Medical Group 

Casa Colina  

Children’s Hospital, Los Angeles 

Citrus Valley Physicians 
Partners 

Dameron Hospital Association 

Dignity Health 

Eisenhower Medical Center 

Enloe Medical Center 

 

EPIC Mgmt./Beaver Medical 

Facey Medical Foundation 

Fairchild Medical Center  

Gateways Hospital 

Gould Medical Group 

Henry Mayo Newhall Memorial 

Hospital Association of Southern 
California 

Huntington Hospital 

Huntington Health Physicians 

John Muir Health 

Marshall Medical Center 

Martin Luther King 

Motion Picture & Television 
Fund 

NorthBay Healthcare 

Orthopaedic Institute for 
Children 

Oroville Hospital 

Prime Healthcare Services, Inc. 

Prospect Medical Holdings 

Ridgecrest Regional Hospital 

Saint Joseph Health System 

Sky Lakes Medical Center 

Sutter Medical Group 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

The Doctors of Providence Saint 
John’s Medical Group 

Torrance Memorial Medical 
Center 

Keenan’s Partial List of Healthcare 
organizations 
 

44



11 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Timing and Compensation 

• Recommend move to Keenan as Broker of Record 
as soon as possible.  Keenan will accept the same 
compensation as our current broker for Consulting 
services.   

• Move to Keenan’s TPA 1/1/18.  120 day 
implementation is needed.  Fees for current clients 
are competitive with other TPAs.  

• No added cost for travel or expenses. 
 

 

45



12 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

 
 

Appendix 

46



13 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

KHC’s Consulting Scope of Services 
• Strategic Planning 

• Cost and Benefit Benchmarking 

• Program Design 

• Evaluate, Negotiate and Market Renewals 

• Union Negotiation Strategy and Modeling 

• Employee Contribution Strategies 

• Plan Documents / SPDs preparation 

• Financial Analysis and Evaluation 

• Health Management Consulting 

47



14 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

Third Party Claims Administration 
• Keenan’s In-House TPA 
‒ Over 75 hospital clients 

‒ State-of-the-art claims administration system 

‒ Access to both Anthem and Blue Shield networks 

‒ Direct contracting with specific providers on an ad hoc 
basis, as needed 

‒ MedeAnalytics data warehouse and reports 

‒ High touch service 

‒ Ad hoc reporting is typically provided at no charge 

 

48



15 LICENSE NO. 0451271 

KPPC 2016 Audited Savings 
Hospital Members 2016 Drug Spend 2016 Savings 2016 Savings % 

A 2,188 $2,682,732 $405,562 15.1% 
B 1,363 $1,314,304 $328,637 25.0% 
C 1,099 $673,500 $115,027 17.1% 
D 1,436 $544,896 $69,175 12.7% 
E 14,841 $18,415,085 $2,796,948 15.2% 
F 5,843 $3,484,459 $250,310 7.2% 
G 6,335 $5,605,416 $570,580 10.2% 
H 2,865 $2,948,117 $670,980 22.8% 
I 1,021 $977,697 $209,249 21.4% 
J 2,623 $2,326,085 $614,426 26.4% 
K 6,546 $5,997,870 $823,039 13.7% 
L 13,405 $11,769,301 $1,839,687 15.6% 
M 188 $153,019 $47,951 31.3% 
N 1,592 $1,349,216 $332,063 24.6% 
O 2,169 $1,734,743 $518,148 29.9% 
P 1,694 $1,269,819 $187,849 14.8% 
Q 36,532 $31,041,410 $4,616,417 14.9% 
R 8,899 $9,258,313 $2,579,940 27.9% 
S 745 $591,239 $106,688 18.0% 
T 2,045 $1,927,788 $240,993 12.5% 
U 44,230 $40,234,737 $5,060,927 12.6% 
V 1,305 $1,181,497 $115,472 9.8% 
W 2,255 $2,936,376 $378,844 12.9% 

Total 161,219 $148,417,619 $22,878,912 15.4% 

49



Year California Barton Mammoth Ridgecrest NIH Antelope

2010 13,523.36      13,486.61      20,561.96      6,484.74        11,599.03      8,939.35        
2011 14,158.16      17,406.31      21,191.37      6,997.64        12,238.57      13,945.86      
2012 14,908.75      21,056.72      20,435.71      6,082.79        13,371.97      13,050.26      
2013 15,872.52      14,188.79      22,039.18      8,476.47        14,533.28      11,582.06      
2014 16,219.67      20,198.71      23,825.27      10,521.85      15,360.55      8,529.30        
2015 16,937.13      14,641.22      33,084.26      12,425.63      15,279.39      13,863.03      

Comparison of Average Charge Per Inpatient Day
For California Hospitals for Commercial and Managed Care Inpatients

 -    

 5,000.00  

 10,000.00  

 15,000.00  

 20,000.00  

 25,000.00  

 30,000.00  

 35,000.00  

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

California 

Barton 

Mammoth 

Ridgecrest 

NIH 

Antelope 

50



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                    April 19, 2017 
Regular Meeting                       Page 1 of 6  
 
CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Peter Watercott, President. 

 
PRESENT Peter Watercott, President 

John Ungersma MD, Vice President  
M.C. Hubbard, Secretary 
Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Treasurer 
Phil Hartz, Member at Large 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
BUHS SCHOOL CLINIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
FISCAL POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
APPROVALS 
 
 
 

 
Kelli Huntsinger, Chief Operating Officer 
Joy Engblade MD, Chief of Staff 
Carrie Petersen, Chief Accounting Officer 
John Tremble, Interim Chief Financial Officer 
Tracy Aspel, Chief Nursing Officer 
Alison Murray, Interim Chief Human Relations Officer 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Mr. Watercott asked if any members of the public wished to comment on 
any items not on the agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction of the 
District Board.  Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 
address the Board on every item on the agenda, and speakers are limited 
to a maximum of three minutes each.  No comments were heard.  
 
Mr. Watercott called to attention to approval of collaboration with Bishop 
Union High School District (BUHSD) to operate an on-campus student 
health clinic, noting that the clinic has already been approved by the 
BUHSD School Board.  Comments in support of the proposed clinic were 
heard from the following: 

- Lois Alexander, retired Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) 
Nurse Practitioner 

- Robbin Cromer-Tyler, MD 
Mr. Watercott stated his belief that NIHD has both the opportunity and 
responsibility to support the proposed student clinic, and collaboration 
with the School District on this project supports the District's mission 
statement and demonstrates NIHD’s willingness to be the healthcare 
leader in this community.  Following brief discussion it was moved by 
M.C. Hubbard, seconded by John Ungersma MD, and unanimously 
passed to approve the proposed collaboration with BUHSD to operate an 
on-campus student clinic at Bishop Union High School.  
 
Chief Accounting Officer Carrie Petersen called attention to approval of 
the following Fiscal Department policies and procedures: 

- Remote Deposit Service 
- Sales and Use Tax 

It was moved by Mary Mae Kilpatrick, seconded by Phil Hartz, and 
unanimously passed to approve both policies and procedures as presented. 

51



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                    April 19, 2017 
Regular Meeting                       Page 2 of 6  
NURSING 
DEPARTMENT POLICY 
AND PROCEDURE 
 
 
 
COMPLIANCE 
DEPARTMENT POLICY 
AND PROCEDURE 
 
 
 
ANNUAL POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
APPROVALS 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF 
CAPITAL BUDGET FOR 
2017/2018 FISCAL YEAR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NIHD AUXILIARY 
BYLAWS REVIEW 
 
 

Chief Nursing Officer Tracy Aspel, RN called attention to approval of a 
Nursing Department policy and procedure titled Pain Management and 
Documentation.  It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Mr. Hartz, 
and unanimously passed to approve the Pain Management and 
Documentation policy and procedure as presented. 
 
Compliance Officer Patty Dickson called attention to approval of a 
proposed policy and procedure titled Minors with Legal Authority to 
Consent.  It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve the Compliance policy and procedure 
titled Minors with Legal Authority to Consent as presented.   
 
Mr. Watercott called attention to the list of policies and procedures being 
presented for annual approval as listed on Attachment A to the agenda for 
this meeting.  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Mr. Hartz, 
and unanimously passed to approve all policies and procedures included 
on Attachment A as presented. 
 
Interim Chief Financial Officer John Tremble called attention to the 
proposed capital budget for the upcoming 2017/2018 fiscal year.  He also 
reviewed the challenges to budgeting for the upcoming year, which 
included the following: 

- The District has not experienced growth in many service areas 
including inpatient services, surgery, imaging, and clinics visits 
and procedures 

- A significant increase has been seen in employee wages, largely 
due to minimum wage increases and adoption of new salary scales 
for District employees 

- Full year commitments in anesthesia, compliance, and coding have 
increased costs 

- Fewer governmental settlements are expected in the upcoming 
year 

Mr. Tremble also reviewed volume trends in all revenue areas, and 
compared NIHD's charges for inpatient services to the State average, and 
to the charges for services billed by the nearest healthcare facility, 
Mammoth Hospital.  That comparison reveals that NIHD’s charges are 
below the State average, and significantly lower than Mammoth 
Hospital’s charges.  An increase to NIHD's charges for patient services 
could be justified if it becomes necessary in order to balance the budget 
for the upcoming fiscal year. Following review of the information 
provided it was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Mr. Hartz, and 
unanimously passed to approve the proposed capital budget for the 2017 / 
2018 fiscal year as presented. 
 
Mr. Watercott called attention to the NIHD Auxiliary Bylaws which were 
submitted for the annual review and approval of the District Board (no 
new changes of significance have been made to the bylaws).  It was  
 

52



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                    April 19, 2017 
Regular Meeting                       Page 3 of 6  
 
 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF 
ACHD DELEGATE AND 
ALTERNATE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATA AND 
INFORMATION 
COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORT 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
APPROVALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and unanimously 
passed to approve the NIHD Auxiliary Bylaws as presented.   
 
Mr. Watercott announced that the Association of California Healthcare 
Districts (ACHD) has requested that the NIHD Board of Directors appoint 
a Board Member to act as a delegate, and one to act as an alternate to help 
the organization with a review and update of its bylaws.  Following brief 
discussion it was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, 
and unanimously passed to appoint Doctor Ungersma to be the ACHD 
delegate, and to appoint Director Hartz to be the alternate to participate in 
the bylaws review. 
 
Mr. Watercott called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting, 
which contained the following items: 

- Approval of minutes of the March 15 2017 regular meeting 
- 2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring, April 2017 
- Financial and Statistical Reports for the period ending February 

28, 2017 
It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve all three Consent Agenda items as 
presented. 
 
Ms. Petersen reported that the NIHD Data and Information Committee 
meets monthly, and the main focus of the Committee at this time is to aid 
and support the search for a new Electronic Health Record (EHR) for the 
District.   She additionally stated that two employee and management 
surveys have launched in order to collect data that will be needed to make 
the EHR decision. 
 
Chief of Staff Joy Engblade MD reported following careful review, 
consideration, and approval by the appropriate Committees, the Medical 
Executive Committee recommends approval of the following hospital 
wide policies and procedures: 

• Training and Competency in Point-of-Care Testing 
• Point of Care Accu-Check Blood Glucose Testing 
• Gastric Occult Blood 
• Fecal Occult Blood by Beckman Coulter Card Method Hemoccult 

SENSA 
• Urine Dipstick Chemistries 
• Point of Care HemoCue Hbv201 + Hemoglobin Testing – (RHC) 
• Hemosure-One Step Immunological Fecal Occult Blood Test – 

(RHC) 
• Point of Care QuickVue hCG Urine Test – (RHC) 
• Point of Care QuickVue Dipstick Step A Test – (RHC) 

It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and 
unanimously passed to approve all 9 policies and procedures as presented. 
 

53



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                    April 19, 2017 
Regular Meeting                       Page 4 of 6  
RADIOLOGY SERVICES 
CRITICAL INDICATORS 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
APPOINTMENTS AND 
PRIVILEGING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADVANCE PRACTICE 
PROVIDER 
PRIVILEGING 
 
 
 
 
 
EXTENSION OF 
PRIVILEGES AND 
CHANGE IN STAFF 
CATEGORY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
ADVANCEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
RESIGNATION 

Doctor Engblade also called attention to approval of proposed Radiology 
Services Critical Indicators for 2017.  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, 
seconded by Mr. Hartz, and unanimously passed to approve the proposed 
Radiology Services Critical Indicators for 2017 as presented. 
 
Doctor Engblade stated following careful review, consideration, and 
approval by the appropriate Committees the Medical Executive 
Committee also requests approval of the following Medical Staff 
appointments and privileging: 

- Active Staff:  N. Michelle Inforzato, MD (hospitalist); and Jessica 
Paulson, MD (emergency medicine) 

- Consulting Staff:  Joseph Ludwick, MD (pediatric cardiology); 
and Katrinka Kip, MD (pediatric cardiology) 

- Temporary Staff:  Wilbur Peralta, MD (hospitalist – temporary 
assignment until 8/31/17); and Hung Nguyen, MD (hospitalist – 
temporary assignment until 8/31/17) 

It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Ms. Hubbard, and 
unanimously passed to approve all Medical Staff appointments and 
privileging as requested. 
 
Doctor Engblade also stated following careful review, consideration, and 
approval by the appropriate Committees the Medical Executive 
Committee recommends advance practice provider privileging for David 
Nicholson, CRNA (nurse anesthesia).  It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, 
seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and unanimously passed to approve the 
advance practice provider privileging of David Nicholson, CRNA as 
requested. 
 
Doctor Engblade also stated the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends extension of privileges and a change in Staff category for 
Carolyn Saba MD, as follows:   

- Change of Staff category from Temporary to Consulting Staff; and 
extension of privileges from 5/31/17 to 12/31/17 during the 
pendency of Dr. Saba’s Consulting Staff reappointment 
application 

It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Mr. Hartz and unanimously 
passed to approve the extension of privileges and change in Staff category 
for Carolyn Saba, MD as requested. 
 
Dr. Engblade also stated the Medical Executive Committee requests 
approval of the advancement of Manish Pandya, MD (hospitalist); request 
to advance from Provisional Active Staff to Active Staff (member in good 
standing).  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. 
Kilpatrick, and unanimously passed to approve the Medical Staff 
advancement of Doctor Manish Pandya as requested. 
 
Doctor Engblade also requested Board approval of the Medical Staff 
resignation of Felix Karp, MD (effective 3/31/17, privileges in effect 

54



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                    April 19, 2017 
Regular Meeting                       Page 5 of 6  
 
 
 
 
OTHER 
 
 
 
CHIEF OPERATING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF ACCOUNTING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF NURSING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 

through 12/31/17).  It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Mr. 
Hartz, and unanimously passed to approve the Medical Staff resignation 
of Felix Karp, MD as requested. 
 
Doctor Engblade also reported (as an informational item) that ACLS will 
become a required certification for new hospitalist applicants, and for 
current hospitalists at the time of Medical Staff reappointment. 
 
Chief Operating Officer Kelli Huntsinger provided a bi-monthly report 
which included the following: 

- Congratulations go out to NIHD Patient Navigator Rosie Graves, 
who  has earned certification as a Breast Patient Navigator 

- NIHD recently held its’ annual years of service employee 
recognition event, at which 36 employees were recognized 

- The District recently completed an upgrade to its Emergency 
Services radio amplifier, and the County of Inyo contributed 
approximately $35,000 toward the cost 

- The State of California recently inspected Northern Inyo 
Hospital’s (NIH’s) Mammography services program, and the 
District passed the inspection with flying colors 

- The NIHD Lab is expecting a Joint Commission survey at any 
time 

- Dietary manager Susan Pernal has relocated out of this area, and 
the District is recruiting for an additional dietician to assist in the 
Dietary Department.  

-  Another round of 7 Habits training recently took place. 
Approximately 100 NIHD employees have now completed the 7 
Habits training, with the goal being to eventually have all staff 
members trained. 

 
Carrie Petersen provided a Chief Accounting Officer report, which 
included the following: 

- The cost report for 2015 has been finalized 
- The MediCal cost report for 2013 has been finalized 
- Ms. Petersen is in the process of training Fiscal Department staff 

to take over her current responsibilities, as part of her off-boarding 
process and in preparation for her October 2017 retirement. 

- The Fiscal Department continues to work diligently on finalizing 
the 2017/2018 operating budget 

- The NIHD PEPRA retirement plan has been funded 
 
Chief Nursing Officer Tracy Aspel, RN reported on the following: 

- A recruitment update was given in regard to RN staffing 
- Gina Riesche, RN has accepted the Emergency Department Nurse 

Manager and Disaster Planning position 
- Justin Nott, RN has accepted the position of Medical Surgical and 

ICU Unit Nurse Manager (acute and subacute) 
- As a result of a nursing management re-organization, the Nursing 

55



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                    April 19, 2017 
Regular Meeting                       Page 6 of 6  
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF HUMAN 
RELATIONS OFFICER 
REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER 
REPORTS 
 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Department will have more managers and fewer directors in the 
future 

- Employee Health nurse Nel Hecht, RN will retire as of the end of 
this week 

 
Interim Chief Human Relations Officer Alison Murray reported that 
NIHD’s new salary scale went into effect as of April 2, 2017, and  38% of 
employee pay rates were adjusted to a higher scale.  Ms. Murray also 
reported that the Human Relations Department is in the process of 
updating employee evaluation templates and improving the District's 
employee evaluation process.  A recruitment update was also provided, 
and it was noted that we have a strong candidate for the permanent Chief 
Human Relations Officer position. 
 
Mr. Watercott asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to 
report on any items of interest.  Director Ungersma provided a report on 
the Association of Healthcare Districts (ACHD) Legislative Day, which 
was held on April 2, 3, and 4.  No other reports were heard. 
 
At 7:24pm Mr. Watercott reported the meeting would adjourn to closed 
session to allow the Board of Directors to: 

A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the 
responsible department head and the Medical Staff Executive 
Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
Section 54962 of the Government Code). 

B. Confer with Legal Counsel regarding pending and threatened 
litigation, existing litigation and significant exposure to litigation, 
4 matters pending (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9). 

C. Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (estimated 
public session date for discussion yet to be determined)(Health 
and Safety Code Section 32106).   

 
At 8:01 pm the meeting returned to open session.  Mr. Watercott reported 
the Board took no reportable action. 
   
The meeting adjourned at 8:02 pm.         

  
 
 

 
________________________________________ 
Peter Watercott, President 

 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  M.C. Hubbard, Secretary 

56



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                     May 5, 2017 
Special Meeting                       Page 1 of 1  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 11:30 am by Peter Watercott, 
President. 
 

PRESENT Peter Watercott, President 
John Ungersma, MD, Vice President  
M.C. Hubbard, Secretary 
Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Treasurer 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA, Chief Executive Officer 
Kelli Huntsinger, Chief Operating Officer 
Carrie Petersen, Chief Accounting Officer 
Tracy Aspel, Chief Nursing Officer 
Alison Murray, Interim Chief Human Relations Officer 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Phil Hartz, Member At Large  
 
Mr. Watercott announced that at this time persons in the audience may 
speak only on items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers are 
limited to a maximum of three minutes each.   
 
At 11:31 am the meeting adjourned to closed session to allow the Board 
of Directors to confer with Legal Counsel regarding pending litigation 
(pursuant to Government code Section 54956.9). 
 
 
At 12:48 p.m. the meeting returned to open session.  Mr. Watercott 
reported the Board took no reportable action. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:48 p.m.. 
 
              
 
 
 
     
  

  
 

 
________________________________________ 
Peter Watercott, President 

 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  M.C. Hubbard, Secretary 

57



1 

 

   

 

2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring-May 2017 
 

1. QAPI continues to receive and monitor data related to the previous CMS Validation Survey, including but not limited to, 

restraints, dietary process measures, case management, pain re-assessment, as follows: 

 

a. Advance Directives Monitoring.  

 

         
 

b. Positive Lab Cultures are being routed to Infection Prevention and each positive is being investigated as to source.  

Monitoring has been ongoing and reported through Infection Control Committee.  QAPI receives data.   

 

c. Safe Food cooling monitored for compliance with approved policy and procedure.  100% compliance since May 6, 

2013. 

 

d. Dietary hand washing logs have been reported and are at 100% compliance since May 6, 2013. 

 

 

e. QAPI continues to monitor dietary referrals and the number of consults completed within 24 hours.  

 

 

 

58



2 

 

 
 

 

f. Care plans reviewed by Case Management and interventions made to produce care plans. Progress has been made in  

developing individualized care plans. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

59



3 

 

 

 

g. Fire drill date, times, attendance and outcomes, smoke detector tests, and fire extinguisher test grids have been 

approved.  All fire drills were complete and compliant from May 6, through present.  

 

 

h. Pain Re-Assessment. NIH conducts pain re-assessment after administering pain medications and uses a 1-10 scale.  

 

 

 
    

 

 

 
   

60



4 

 

 
   Note: Due to small sample sizes in the ICU, results should be interpreted with caution for this unit. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

61



5 

 

 

Table 6. Restraint chart monitoring for legal orders. 

 Oct 

2016 

Nov 

2016 

Dec 

2016 

Jan 

2017 

Feb 

2017 

March 

2017 

April 

2017* 

Goal 

Restraint verbal/written 

order obtained within 1 hour 

of restraints 

1/2 
(50%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100% 

1/1 
(100%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

 100% 

Physician signed order 

within 24 hours 

1/2 
(50%) 

 

0/1 
(0%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

½ 
(50%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 100% 

Physician Initial Order 

Completed (all areas 

completed and 

form/time/date noted/signed 

by MD and RN) 

0/2 
(0%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

0/2 
(0%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 100% 

Physician Re-Order 

Completed (all areas 

completed and form 

time/date/noted/signed by 

MD and RN) 

2/4 

(50%) 

1/3 

(33%) 

2/2 

(100%) 

3/9 

(33%) 

0/1 

(0%) 

0/1 

(0%) 

 100% 

Orders are for 24 hours 5/6 

(83%) 

4/4 

(100%) 

4/4 

(100%) 

11/11 

(100%) 

2/2 

(100%) 

2/2 

(100%) 

 100% 

Is this a PRN (as needed) 

Order 

0/6 

(0%) 

0/4 

(0%) 

0/4 

(0%) 

0/11 

(0%) 

0/2 

(0%) 

0/2 

(0%) 

 0% 

              *No restraint orders for this time interval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

62



 
 

Rev. 5/5/17 mag  
 

Hospital-Wide Pillars of Excellence: FY July 1, 2016-June 30, 2017 

                 

   J-S O-D J-M A-J  

Indicator Baseline Goal Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 YTD 

Service 

1. Patient satisfaction        

a. Avatar RHC-                                
Overall score % Top Box 

75.28 
Below 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

78.10 
Below 

Average 

75.5 
Below 

Average1 

  Not Yet 
Available 

b. Avatar Emergency Department-
Overall score % Top Box 

78.20 
Above 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

73.28 
Below 

Average 

69.8 
Below 

Average 
2
 

  Not Yet 
Available 

c. HCAHPS Perinatal-                    
Overall score % Top Box 

72.64 
Below 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

68.65 
Below 

Average 

62.5 
Below 

Average
3
  

 

  Not Yet 
Available 

d. HCAHPS MedSurg-                     
Overall score % Top Box 

75.86 
About 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

74.52 
About 

Average 

67.5 
Below 

Average
4
  

  Not Yet 
Available 

Note: Q1 data is bases on three months due to switch from Avatar to Press Ganey. Data for the Perinatal Unit for Q1 and Q2 should be interpreted with 
caution due to small sample size. 1. Peer Comparison = All PG Medical Practice Groups. 2. Peer Comparison= Hospitals with 10,000 or less visits/year. 3. 
Peer Comparison= Hospitals with 20-30 Beds. 4. Peer Comparison= Hospitals with 20-30 Beds.     

Quality 

1. Adverse Drug Events-Anticoagulants* 2/44 
(4.5%) 

0 
1/2 

(50%) 
0/4  
0%) 

0/10 
(0%) 

 1/6 
(16.7%) 

2. Surgical Site Infections*,1 5/1104 
(0.45%) 

0 
2/312 

(0.64%) 
3/348 

(0.86%) 
2/362 
(.20%) 

 5/660 
(0.76%) 

3. Central Line Associated Bloodstream 
Infections (CLABSI) CLABSI/Line Days 
(Per 1000 Line Days)* 

0/155 
(0) 0 

0/79  
(0) 

0/60  
(0) 

0/66   
(0) 

 

 0/205 
(0) 

4. Catheter Associated Urinary Tract 
Infections (CAUTI) CAUTI/Catheter Days 
(Per 1000 Catheter Days)* 

0/579 
(0) 0 

1/180 
(5.55) 

0/189  
(0) 

0/159   
(0) 

 1/528 
(1.89) 

5. Ventilator Associated Pneumonia* 0/36 
(0%) 

0 
0/3 
(0%) 

0/5  
(0%) 

0/9   
(0%) 

 0/17 
(0%) 

6. Falls With Injuries (Per 1000 Patient 
Days)* 

3/4394 
(0.68) 

0 
0/943 

(0) 
1/707 
(1.41) 

1/804 
(1.24) 

 2/2454 
(0.81) 

7. 30 Day Readmission Rate (Inpatient)* 64/1181 
(5.4%) 

<15% 
10/3242 
(3.1%) 

7/277 
(2.5%) 

2/281 
(0.7%) 

 17/6012 
(2.8%) 

*Note: Baseline period for these metrics is FY 15-16.     1. SSI National average is about 2.0%. 2. Correction was made in denominator for this data. 

People        

1. Overall Turnover Rate, 3 89/491 
(18.13%) 

<15% 
21/432 
(4.86%) 

21/441 
(4.76%) 

14/446 
(3.14%) 

 56/488 
(11.48%) 

2. Total Recordable Incident Rate (OSHA) 
per 100 employees-Modified**, 3 

37/407 
(9.09) 

0 
14/414 
(3.38%) 

3/416 
(0.72%) 

24/432 
(5.56%) 

 41/421 
(9.75%) 

3.Benchmark data for these metrics only available per annum and since the number of incidents accumulates, but number of employees is relatively 
constant, it is most appropriate to compare only per annum data to the goal. To compute YTD prior to year end, an average of the quarterly metric 
denominator will be used. 
**OSHA metric is per 100 FTE; NIH proxy measure is per 100 employees. National average for hospitals is 6.2. (Reference available in PEX office) 

Finance        

1. Current Ratio  2.87 >2.0 2.27 3.16 3.46  2.96 

2. Days Cash on Hand-Short Term Sources   82 >75 85 72 77  78 

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.43 >1.5-2.0 2.67 2.30 2.16  2.38 

4. A/R Days (Inpatient & Outpatient) 65 <60 76 76 81  78 
 

LEGEND 
 Best-in-Class Performance, Exceeds Goal 
 Above Average, Meets Goal 
 About Average, Does Not Meet Goal 

 Below Average, Does Not Meet Goal 

Important General Notes: 
1. Goals in Blue are stretch goals and may follow a ‘zero defects’ approach outlined in the Hospital-Wide Quality Assurance and Performance 

Improvement (QAPI) plan. On some metrics, we have set the bold goal of zero defects (best-in-class). For the metrics with a goal of zero, either we 
are best-in-class and get a blue color code or not best-in-class and get a red code. It is important to note that a code of red in the ‘Quality’ category 
of indicators for metrics with goals of zero does not necessarily indicate poor performance, just that we have not met our goal of zero. For example, 
on Surgical Site infections for Quarter 1, FY 15-16, we did not meet our goal of zero defects, but are still outperforming most of the country with an 
infection rate of 4 times LOWER than the national average of 2.0%. 

2. Patient Satisfaction/Patient Experience-For each department the Top Box Percentile Rank for the chosen Peer Comparison groups was used to 
classify the performance category based on the following cut points; 90-100 Best in Class (Blue), 75-89 Above Average (Green), 50-74 About Average 
(Yellow), ≤49 Below Average (Red). It is recommended that specific performance dimensions be further assessed by area leadership to identify 
specific opportunities for improvement.  

63



 
 

Rev. 5/5/17 mag  
 

 

64



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                  March 1, 2017
Special Meeting               Page 1 of 2

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 1:00 pm by Peter Watercott, President.

PRESENT Peter Watercott, President
John Ungersma MD, Vice President 
M.C. Hubbard, Secretary
Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Treasurer

ALSO PRESENT

ABSENT

OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT

BROWN ACT, 
COMPLIANCE, AND 
GOVERNANCE 
TRAINING

Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA, Chief Executive Officer
Joy Engblade MD, Chief of Staff
Colin Coffey, District Legal Counsel
Kelli Huntsinger, Chief Operating Officer
Carrie Petersen, Chief Accounting Officer
Maria Sirois, Chief Performance Excellence Officer
Alison Murray, Interim Chief Human Relations Officer
Tracy Aspel, Chief Nursing Officer
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant

Phil Hartz, Member at Large

Mr. Watercott asked if any members of the public wished to comment on 
any items listed on the Notice for this meeting (speakers are limited to a 
maximum of three minutes each).   No comments were heard. 
       
Attorney Colin Coffey was present to provide Board education on the 
topics of the Brown Act; Compliance; and Governance as it relates to 
Healthcare Districts.  The following handouts were provided:

- Board Member Legal Orientation Manual, containing information 
on transparency, ethics, and fiduciary compliance responsibilities

- Tips for Chief Executive / Staff Success
- Orientation Materials for Newly Elected Officials 

Information was also provided on the following:
- Brown Act Guide reference materials
- The People’s Business Guidebook (including information on 

Public Records Act requests)
- Fair Political Practices Commission Conflict of Interest Rules and 

Guidelines
- Statement of Director Duties and Responsibilities
- Fiduciary duties and public service
- Healthcare Director’s compliance duties

It was noted that Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board 
members complete Brown Act and ethics training on a bi-annual basis.  
Discussion of the following matters also took place:

- The pros and cons of possibly establishing a Board Commitment 

65



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                                  March 1, 2017
Special Meeting               Page 2 of 2

ADJOURNMENT

Letter 
- Discussion of the cautions involving Board members becoming 

actively engaged with District staff in group staff meetings, etc.
- Review and discussion of Closed Session guidelines, restrictions, 

and confidentiality issues 
- Discussion of cautions regarding what constitutes a serial meeting 

of the Board
- Discussion of potential conflicts of interest
- Discussion of the role of Directors vs. the role of hospital 

management
- Handling opportunities for public comment during meetings

The meeting adjourned at 3:35pm.           

 

________________________________________
Peter Watercott, President

Attest: ________________________________________
            M.C. Hubbard, Secretary

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97




